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This memorandum summarizes the Office of Accountability audit of the subject field office
and mine. Audit subjects included MSHA field activities, level of enforcement, Field Activity
Reviews (FARs), Accompanied Activities (AAs), MSHA supervisory and managerial
oversight, mine plans, Hazard complaints, PKW'’s, ACR review, and the conditions and
practices at the mine. The audit was conducted by Accountability Specialists Arlie A. Webb

and Jerry J. Kissell, and Acting Accountability Specialist Billy Randolph, during the week of
W . Positive findings and issues requiring attention
are included in this audit r .

Overview

Introduction

The district portion of the audit was conducted fromiR througr- . The field office

ducted on and the on-site portion of the audit was conducted on
. Accompanying the audit team were_
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On-site areas examined at the- included the 004-0 working
section, intake travelway (primary escapeway) including lifelines, Simons Rand scoop (Unit
#3), DBT twin boom roof bolter (Unit #2), H “Butt” rooms, and the alternate escapeway and
lifelines. Also examined during the audit were the A, B, C, D, E, F and H intake travelways,
the E-main conveyor belt, drive, and fire suppression system, the H conveyor belt, drive, and
fire suppression system, three SCSR caches, and a Strata refuge chamber.

The mine phone lines, wireless communications system, electronic tracking system, and
communication based tracking systems were examined. The on-site portion of the audit also
included examination of pre-shift and on shift records, the imminent danger run, and an
observation of inspection activities.

Other observations on-site included a portion of the mining cycle (continuous miner & bridge
conveyor) and roof and rib conditions. Two 50/50 (water pressure/volume) tests were
performed in different locations and several fire taps were tested a random. Roof support
appeared well maintained and the roof control plan appeared adequate for the conditions
observed. Rock dusting and general housekeeping looked good in all areas traveled.

On-site areas examined at the- included the 001-0 working
section (#1 Butt), the intake travel way (primary escapeway) including lifelines, the No. 7 belt
conveyor entries (alternate escapeway) including lifelines, the No. 1 belt drive and the No.1
low belt. A twin-boom roof bolting machine and a Strata refuge chamber were also
examined.

In the West Mains area, lifelines, an alternative refuge chamber, phone lines, wireless
communication system, tracking system were examined. Portions of the Atmospheric
Monitoring System (AMS) were examined along with several sprinkler type fire suppression
systems. Miners were interviewed regarding the training plan, emergency response plan and
fire-fighting drills. The on-site portion of the audit also included examination of pre-shift
and on shift records, the imminent danger run, and an observation of inspection activities.

In addition roof and rib conditions were observed, as well as fire fighting equipment and
general housekeeping practices. The mining equipment was free of grease and oil. Rock
dusting appeared adequate in the areas traveled. The inspector used a camera to document

violations.

'I'he- was idle during the audit. On-site areas examined included the 3 Left
rooms (MMU-001-0), the intake travel way (primary escape), lifelines, mantrips, the C-main



conveyor belt and drive, the fire suppression system at the C belt drives, guarding, and an
alternative refuge chamber. Also examined were the phone lines, wireless communications,

tracking system, and mine records.

During the idle time, mine employees were constructing seals in the “F Butt” area of the
mine. Seal construction (Micon Hybrid II 120psi) was observed, including ground control,
materials being used, and installation of sample ports.

Roof and rib conditions were inspected and roof support appeared well maintained. The
roof control plan appeared adequate for the conditions observed. General clean up and
housekeeping was adequate and rock dusting looked good. Several fire taps were tested at

random.

S&S Rate Comparison

S&S rates for the Kittanning field office were above the district and national levels for FY
2008, FY 2009, and to-date in FY 2010.

S&S Rate Comparison
Fiscal Kittanning, PA Coal District 2 National
Year Field Office Average
2008 42.9% 39.6% 34.0%
2009 51.3% 43.6% 35.0%
2010 (to-date) 55.3% 43.4% 33.4%

Time and Activity Comparison

Time distribution for E01 inspections conducted out of the Kittanning, PA field office from
FY 2008 to date, has shown significant improvement in most areas. Although time spent in
the “other” category at surface facilities is higher than the national average, it has decreased
during the first half of FY 2010. Likewise, the percentage of time spent on-site has increased
during the first half of FY 2010, and is higher than the national average.

Time Distribution (Percent) - E01 Inspections at Surface Facilities
Citations Citations
Travel Other On-Site Issued Issued Total
On-site Off-site

2008 18.63% 21.94% 59.18% 2.21% 0.25% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2008 17.06% 18.56 % 64.07 % 5.82% 0.30% 100.0%
2009 14.70% 23.53% 60.97 % 6.81% 0.81% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2009 16.99% 16.93% 65.88% 5.40% 0.20% 100.0%
2010 (to-date) 11.84% 16.17% 71.37% 4.89% 0.62% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2010 17.56 % 16.06% 65.98 % 4.84% 0.39% 100.0%

Time spent in the “other” category at surface mines is also higher than the national average.

However, it too has decreased during the first half of FY 2010. Likewise, the percentage of




time spent on-site has increased during the first half of FY 2010, and is slightly higher than
the national average.

Time Distribution (Percent) - E01 Inspections at Surface Mines
Citations Citations
Travel Other On-Site Issued Issued Total
On-site Off-site
2008 21.85% | 22.05% 54.82% 2.85% 1.28% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2008 18.74% | 16.88% 64.00% 5.14% 0.38% 100.0%
2009 16.92% 21.19% 60.88% 417% 1.01% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2009 18.83% 14.64% 66.14% 5.01% 0.39% 100.0%
2010 (to-date) 16.66% 15.39% 67.34% 3.15% 0.61% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2010 18.90% 13.45% 67.10% 4.52% 0.55% 100.0%

Underground time distribution has shown dramatic improvement. The percentage of time
spent in the “other” category has decreased during the first half of FY 2010, and lower than
the national average. Time spent on-site has increased during the first half of FY 2010, and is

higher than the national average.

Time Distribution (Percent) - E01 Inspections at Underground Mines
Citations Citations
Travel Other On-Site Issued Issued Total
On-site Off-site

2008 13.86% | 20.03% 64.82% 4.32% 1.29% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2008 15.44% | 18.28% 65.80% 6.30% 0.49% 100.0%
2009 13.88% | 18.08% 66.74% 4.05% 1.30% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2009 1543% | 16.97% 67.20% 5.94% 0.40% 100.0%
2010 (to-date) 14.25% | 11.46% 73.67% 3.25% 0.61% 100.0%
Nat'l Avg 2010 15.99% | 15.43% 68.11% 5.77% 0.47% 100.0%

Audit Results

The audit revealed positive findings in several areas, including the following:

1. Uniform Mine File books are in proper order and well maintained.
2. Inspection personnel were professional and courteous

3. In-mine observations revealed good conditions and work practices, good
housekeeping and rock dusting, and a safe working attitude.

Communications between the mine operator and MSHA appear very good

The level of enforcement during the audit appeared accurate

6. Time and activity code information sheets were created and used to assist inspectors
in the proper charging of time for specific inspection activities.

Safety and health discussions with miners were held and were done very well.

8. Performance issues are identified and immediately addressed
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The audit also revealed several issues that require corrective actions, including the following:

1.

2.

E-02 (103i) inspections are not being conducted on weekend/ off shifts when
production is completed (See item 14)

No weekend inspections were noted on E01 inspections. Information and interviews
indicate that several mines operate on Saturdays.

Supervisors and Managers are not completing the required number of mine visits, or
are not properly completing the spreadsheet.

Several 103(i) spot inspections (E02) were conducted on the same day of the week for
three or four consecutive weeks. In addition, an insufficient number of E02
inspections were conducted on off-shifts or weekends.

Second-level reviews do not contain sufficient documentation extraordinary actions or
constructive criticism.

District-level Peer Reviews do not always include a review of the Uniform Mine File
and do not always contain information regarding the district manager monitoring the
effectiveness of the corrective action plan on an ongoing basis and/ or making
adjustments to the plan as necessary.

Specialist and clerical personnel in the Technical Division do not appear to be
sufficient to address the current workload.



Attachments

A.  Office of Accountability Checklist with comments, recommendations, and references

B. Citations/Orders issued during this audit

75.400
75.1722(a)
75.1101-10
75.380(d)(7)(iv)
75.1506(a)(3)

75.400
75.1101-7
75.1722(a)
75.360(f)
75.202(a)

11. 75.360(f)
12. 75.1101-6
13. 75.1722(a)

G Enforcement actions with questionable evaluations



Evaluate supervisory review of inspection reports and documentation for
completeness.

Adequate [E Inadequate D Not Applicable I:] Comments Below

The field office supervisor documents report deficiencies and the date reviewed with
inspectors and attaches the hand written document to the reports.

1.

Determine if supervisors address report deficiencies immediately

2.

Adequate [E Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
See Item 1

3 Determine if supervisors are visiting each assigned mine at least annually
Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

According to the District 2 spreadsheet for recording manager and supervisor mine visits,
four of the nineteen positions listed did not complete the required number of visits during FY
2009. The Ruff Creek Field Office - completed 46 of 48 required
visits; the G0l completed only 13 of 20 required visits; theﬁ
completed only 8 of 20 required visits; and the
completed 0 of 12 required visits.

The spreadsheet also indicates the number of mine visits at this point in FY 2010 is low for
ten of the nineteen positions listed.

4 Evaluate the quality of Field Activity Review reports (FARs)

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below @

The FAR’s reviewed indicated positive accomplishments, but no need to improve items were
noted.

Determine if supervisors/managers are identifying and addressing performance or
S. behavior based issues during and after accompanied inspections are conducted

Adequate D Inadequate D Not Applicable Comments Below
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There were no performance or behavior based issues identified during accompanied
inspections in FY 2009, or at this point in FY 2010.

6 Evaluate the quality of Accompanied Inspections

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below @

The AA’s reviewed indicated positive accomplishments, but no needs to improve items were
noted.

Determine if supervisors are thoroughly reviewing mine files at least annually

7

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable L—_] Comments Below
Determine if Assistant District Manager is holding supervisor accountable for

8. general mine visits, FARs, and accompanied activities

Adequate Inadequate [___l Not Applicable D Comments Below
Determine if District Manager is using Performance Management System to hold

9. ADMs accountable for oversight of subordinates

Adequate [::I Inadequate [:] Not Applicable Comments Below

There were no performance or behavior based issues identified during accompanied
inspections in FY 2009, or at this point in FY 2010.

Determine if ADMs and DMs are visiting mines with poor compliance at least
11. monthly

Adequate Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

Although managerial mine visits appear adequate, See Item No. 3 regarding supervisory
mine visits.

Attachment A - Checklist : 8
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Evaluate required monthly reports of supervisory and management mine visits

12.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
Evaluate the location, workload, and availability of specialists (roof control,

13 ventilation, electrical, etc.) within the district

Adequate I:] Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

The number of roof control and electrical specialists in the district appear adequate for the
number of plans processed. However, the ventilation department has only one specialist
assigned to the district office.

The Roof Control Department does not have a secretary. Those duties are shared between
four secretaries, who work in other departments. During the audit, several documents or
items were requested that required identifying which secretary maintained those files. This
overlapping responsibility for completing work and maintaining files creates the potential for

€rrors.

In addition, the Kittanning, PA field office has four specialists (one each for Roof Control,
Electrical, Ventilation, and Health). The district should consider if distributing specialists
between the Kittanning and Indiana field offices would be more efficient or effective.

Recommendation: Observations made during the audit indicate the district should consider
consolidating Roof Control clerical work under one position to prevent errors and reduce the potential
r lost files.

Evaluate supervisory and management review of 103(i) (spot inspection) tracking
14. system for compliance with time frames

Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

Although time and activity data and records indicate that all required 103(i) inspections were

Attachment A - Checklist 9
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completed, an insufficient number of these inspections were on off-shifts and weekends.
Records indicate that only 11 of the more than 700 E02 inspections conducted during FY 2009
and FY 2010 were conducted on off-shifts, and only 2 of these were conducted on a weekend.

In addition, there were 77 instances when 103(i) inspections were conducted on the same day
of the week for two consecutive weeks, 10 instances when 103(i) inspections were conducted
on the same day of the week for three consecutive weeks, and 1 instance when 103(i)
inspections were conducted on the same day of the week for four consecutive weeks.

Action Required: 103(i) inspections must be conducted in accordance with requirements of the Mine

Act.
Reference: Section 103 of the Mine Act

Determine if supervisors and managers are ensuring that 103(i) inspections are not
15. combined with any other type of inspection

Adequate Inadequate I:] Not Applicable D Comments Below

Records indicate that EQ2 inspections are not being combined with any other type of
inspection.

Determine if supervisors, staff assistants, and other management personnel are
16. reviewing work products for accuracy and completeness

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
Seeitem1 & 2

Determine if supervisors are monitoring inspector time and activity
17. documentation to ensure proper use of time by inspector

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Analysis of time and activity for FY 2010 (mid-year) indicates that inspectors are spending
more time onsite and less time in the “other” category.

Determine if Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) are in place, current, and in
18. compliance with MSHA policies and procedures

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable l___] Comments Below

Standard Operating Procedures were examined during this audit. All applicable SOPs were
in place, and several had been recently revised to comply with Agency policy and applicable

Attachment A - Checklist 10
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| regulations.

|

Determine if supervisors are using the Performance Management System to hold
19. inspectors accountable for properly evaluating gravity and negligence, termination
due dates, and timely termination of citations

Adequate X Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
q q APPp

Determine if supervisors are adequately evaluating the level of enforcement by
20. visiting each producing mine

Adequate X Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
q q 19%

Determine if District Manager is monitoring the ACRI program and using the
21, Performance Management System to ensure that CLRs justify changes

Adequate |:| Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

- N T v LT cm et aMecicnd LA vmanllA

22. Determine if District Manager is using discretion in granting conferences

Adequate [:] Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below l x |

During FY 2009, only 27 conferences were conducted by the ACRI Department in District 2.
At this point in FY 2010 there have been no conferences held.

Attachment A - Checklist 11
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Determine if second level reviews and Peer Reviews are used to assess supervisory
23. review of enforcement actions

Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

During this audit, 18 second-level reviews were examined. Of these, only two contained
comments (1 positive and 1 negative) regarding the inspector or supervisor’s activities. Two
of the second-level reviews indicated that an extraordinary effort had been made, but there
was no documentation as to what that effort was.

Recommendation: Second-level reviews need to contain more than just checked boxes. The review
should be well documented to help the supervisor and inspector to improve.

Determine if appropriate actions are taken by supervisors and manager with
24. respect to issues of misconduct and/or poor performance

Adequate I:l Inadequate D Not Applicable Comments Below

There were no instances of misconduct or poor performance identified during FY 2009, or at
this point in FY 2010.

Evaluate inspector/specialist knowledge of documentation required and process
25. for completing PKW Forms.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

A review of PKW forms at the district office indicates the inspectorate is knowledgeable in
the proper evaluation and completion of all portions of these forms.

Evaluate the district’s process for performing Possible Knowing/Willful (PKW)
26. reviews and initiating or denying special investigations

Adequate Inadequate I___] Not Applicable D Comments Below

A review of the Special Investigations Department files indicates the district has an effective
process for determining when a special investigation is warranted. Records indicate each
PKW is reviewed by several levels of district management and the SSI prior to presenting to
the District Manager. Evaluations on the PKWs appear well-reasoned and documented.

Attachment A - Checklist 12




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID [- ] Date ‘l

Determine if District Manager is using Performance Management System to hold

95, the Supervisory Special Investigator accountable for properly evaluating potential
cases
Adequate Inadequate [:] Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if managers and supervisors are using required “standardized reports”
28. to review critical data relevant to inspections and investigations

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable I:l Comments Below

Interviews with supervisors and managers indicated that “Key Indicators” are used to
evaluate the inspection program. Other reports, generated by the district’s Technical
Division, are used to evaluate enforcement in those areas as well as the plan approval

process.

Determine if complete and thorough inspections are being conducted and
29. adequately documented

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if inspection notes, air samples, rock dust samples, and tracking
map/ diagram support the inspector’s assertion that the mine was inspected in its

30. :
entirety
Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
31 Determine that the inspector spent sufficient time on off-shifts and on weekends
Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Based on an analysis of E01 inspection times during the first half of FY 2010.

Determine if the SCSR inventory database has been implemented to track
32, inspections of SCSRs

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable I___] Comments Below

Attachment A - Checklist _ 13
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Determine if areas deemed “too wet” for rock dust surveys are re-visited and
33. sampled

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if all mine record books, postings, and other required materials are
34. examined during the inspection

Adequate Inadequate [:] Not Applicable D Comments Below

Previous E-01 inspection reports include checklists of required posting and records that are
examined including the date of review during the inspection.

Determine if all provisions of the MINER Act are evaluated during the inspection

35.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
Determine if the amount of time expended on each inspection activity and area of

36. the mine is sufficient to accomplish inspection goals

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable [:] Comments Below

See also Item 17 and 31 above.

Evaluate each citation/order/safeguard for inspector’s determination of gravity,
37. negligence, number of persons affected, and the level of enforcement

Adequate Inadequate [:l Not Applicable l___] Comments Below
Citations issued during the audit appeared to be properly evaluated.

38 Accompany and evaluate inspector’s imminent danger run

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Attachment A - Checklist 14
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Check adequacy of preshift/ onshift examinations

39.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
Evaluate inspector’s observation of roof conditions. Is a copy of the currently

40. approved roof control plan maintained on the section?

Adequate Inadequate I___] Not Applicable D Comments Below

41 Evaluate operator’s workplace examinations

Adequate Inadequate ]:] Not Applicable ]:I Comments Below

4 Evaluate conditions on working section and observe work cycle

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

4 Observe air quantity, quality, and gas checks by inspector

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable [:I Comments Below

m Determine adequacy of Emergency Response Plan training (interview miners)

Adequate E Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Attachment A - Checklist 15
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Determine adequacy of training regarding roof, ventilation, and other plans

L (interview miners). Do inspection notes document evaluation of this type training?

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

46 Evaluate Self-Contained, Self-Rescuer condition, storage, signage

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
Determine if the mine operator has conducted SCSR donning expectation training

47. and if the inspector has observed and evaluated the training

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

48 Examine electrical cables on several pieces of equipment

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

49 Evaluate several pieces of equipment for permissibility

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

50 Examine lifelines, mandoors, and related signage

Adequate Inadequate I:l Not Applicable D Comments Below

Attachment A - Checklist 16
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Examine escapeway map for compliance with regulations

51.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
50 Evaluate integrity of primary and alternate escapeways

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
53 Evaluate integrity of return side stopping line

Adequate Inadequate |:| Not Applicable D Comments Below

Travel and evaluate condition and maintenance of section conveyor belt,
4. structures, and entries

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable {__—] Comments Below

Evaluate conveyor belt isolation from other air courses

55.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

56 Evaluate fire valves and hoses (condition, compatibility of fittings, pressure test)
Adequate Inadequate |:| Not Applicable D Comments Below

Attachment A - Checklist 17




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability . (
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID ] Date —l

Observe and evaluate fire detection methods

57.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable l:] Comments Below
58 Evaluate cleanup of accumulations and application of rock dust

Adequate Inadequate l:l Not Applicable [:| Comments Below

All mines visited were very clean and well rock dusted.

59. Evaluate condition of conveyor belt drives, and fire suppression systems

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable [:] Comments Below

One citation was issued for guarding materials not secured to prevent contact
with moving machine parts. Otherwise, machinery and conveyors systems were in excellent
condition.

Determine if all required record books are adequately completed and in
60. compliance with applicable standards

Adequate Inadequate [:] Not Applicable D Comments Below

61 Examine mine map for accuracy of workings and escapeway locations

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Attachment A - Checklist 18
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Examine mine bulletin board and evaluate adequacy of all required postings

62.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable I___] Comments Below
Interview responsible person(s) and evaluate knowledge of emergency response,

63. evacuation procedures, and fire fighting processes

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if approved plans address and are compatible with mining conditions
64. and equipment

Adequate Inadequate I___] Not Applicable I:l Comments Below

Examine and evaluate at least one set of seals, including methods for obtaining
65. samples from sealed area

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
“Notevaluated
- The actual construction of a seal was evaluated during the mine visit

66 Determine if districts are conducting sufficient, in-depth Peer Reviews

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable I:l Comments Below

Two district-level Peer Review reports (dated June 20, 2008, and June 19, 2009) were
examined during this audit. With the exceptions noted in Item 68 below, district-level Peer
Reviews appeared to be in-depth and thorough.

67 Determine if MSHA headquarters is conducting sufficient, in-depth Peer Reviews

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

One headquarters-level Peer Review report (dated September 19, 2008) was examined during

Attachment A - Checklist 19
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this audit. With the exceptions noted in Item 68 below, headquarters-level Peer Reviews
appeared to be in-depth and thorough.

Determine if Peer Reviews identify root causes of deficiencies, corrective actions,

68. set time lines for corrections, and identify a method for accurately measuring the
success or failure of corrective actions.
Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

Two district-level and one headquarters-level Peer Reviews were examined during this audit.
Although all three reviews identified root causes and corrective actions, the following issues

were noted:
1. The June 20, 2008 district-level review of the Johnstown, PA office did not contain a

method for follow-up or measurement of the success or failure of corrective actions.
2. The September 15, 2008 headquarters-level review of the New Stanton, PA office did
not contain a method for follow-up or measurement of the success or failure of
corrective actions.
3. The June 19, 2009 district-level review of the Indiana, PA office did not list the
completion dates for corrective actions, or a method for follow-up or measurement of
the success or failure of corrective actions.

Recommendation: Peer Reviews should set time frames for completion of corrective actions and have a
method for follow-up and evaluation to determine if corrective actions are effective.

Reference: Accountability Program Handbook (AHO8-I1I-4), page 7-“Accountability Review Report,”
and page 8-"Follow-Up and Evaluation.”

Determine if Peer Reviews are being used to assess supervisors and managers
69. performance

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if Peer Reviews include a visit to the mine, and include observation of
70. the producing section, conveyor belt entries, escapeways and the ERP provisions

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable [___l Comments Below

All three Peer Reviews examined during this audit included a mine visit with observation of
the required areas/ activities.
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Determine if Peer Reviews accurately reflect and evaluate MSHA activities at all
71. types of mining (underground/surface/surface facilities) within the district

Adequate I:] Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below ' X |

The three Peer Reviews examined during the audit indicate that underground mines and
surface mines were included in the Peer Review process. A surface facility has not yet been
included.

Recommendation: All types of mining activity should be included in Peer Reviews.

Determine if approved plans and the Uniform Mine File books are addressed
72. during each Peer Review

Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

The headquarters-level Peer Review documented a thorough review of the Uniform Mine
File. The two district-level Peer Reviews examined during this audit did not contain any
documentation to indicate the Uniform Mine File had been examined during those audits.

Evaluate the approved roof control plan after in-mine visit

73.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
74 Evaluate approved ventilation plan after in-mine visit

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable | ] Comments Below
75 Evaluate approved training plan after discussion with miners

Adequate Inadequate L—__l Not Applicable D Comments Below
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Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
Distrit [ COALD-2 | Field Office | Kittanning, PA | Mine ID _ ] Date 'l

Evaluate the two most current completed E01 (regular) inspection reports (two
77. quarters)

Adequate I:] Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below B

1. No Saturday inspections were done for eve?. this was the only E-01 event
found with this issue.

2. According to the inspector’s notes, the air samples collected at thJl

on 10/13/2009 were collected during an idle shift (section move). These air
samples would not accurately reflect the mine’s normal air quality or methane
liberation rate.

3. Documentation of roof conditions at th- on 12/07 /2009,
01/11/2010, 01/13/2010, 01/14/2010, 01/19/2010, 01/20/2010,01/21/2010, and
01/25/2010, indicate “poor roof” or “bad roof” but do not document if these
conditions are prior to the operator’s roof control efforts or in spite of those efforts. If
the conditions were in spite of the operator’s efforts, a citation should have been
issued and a recommendation made for revision of the roof control plan.

Ten most current completed E02 (103(i) spot) inspection reports

78.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
79 Citations, orders, and safeguards issued during previous two quarters
Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable l:] Comments Below

Evaluations of S&S, Gravity, and Negligence did not always appear to comply with
inspector’s notes or the narrative portion of the citations. (See Attachment C)

Determine if 104(d) tracking system is in place at the office being audited, and is
80. being kept up to date

Adequate Inadequate [:] Not Applicable !:I Comments Below
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability -
District | COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID [ ] Date ‘—- _I

|

Determine if all plans and documents in the Uniform Mine File are legible, and up
81. to date

Adequate Inadequate L__:| Not Applicable I:I Comments Below

Determine if all applicable plan reviews were performed within six months, or
82. within the timeframes required

Adequate Inadequate [:I Not Applicable D Comments Below

Documentation in inspection reports and district files (MSHA Form 2000-204) indicated the
inspectors were reviewing the roof control and ventilation plans during each inspection for
the time period audited.

At the district level the plan review process was reviewed for the time period of April 15,
2009 through April 15, 2010. Records indicated that roof control plans were reviewed or
processed within the applicable time frames. Of the 797 ventilation related plans reviewed or
processed during this time frame, 789 (99%) were completed within the applicable time
frame.

Determine if plan review and approval process provides reasonable assurance that
83. miners are protected

Adequate Inadequate I:I Not Applicable I:I Comments Below

Determine if approved plans are being properly implemented and continue to be
84. revised/adequate as conditions in the mine change

Adequate Inadequate I:I Not Applicable I:I | Comments Below
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Determine if miners are adequately trained in the provisions of any new plan prior
85. to its implementation

Adequate X Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
€q q PP

Determine if Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) adequately address |

86. requirements of MSHA Program Policy Manual

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

87 Determine if district management reviewed the final version of all approved plans
Adequate |__x_:| Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if time frames for approval/disapproval of plans were set, and are
88. being met

Adequate Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
q 9 PP

A review of district plan approval records indicate that time frames are being met more than
99% of the time. See Item No. 82 above.

Determine if the plan is tracked from date of submission through the review
89. process

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

90 Determine if dated copy of approval/disapproval letter is in file

Adequate E Inadequate |:| Not Applicable |:| Comments Below
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91 Determine if copies of the plan are distributed as per an established list

Adequate X Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
q q PP

Determine if a copy of the most recent plan is provided for inclusion in the
92. Uniform Mine File

Adequate X Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
q q PP

93 Determine if a due date for formal review of plans is identified

Adequate Inadequate |:| Not Applicable D Comments Below

In addition to being identified in the mine file, each department maintains a list of mine plan
due dates.

Determine if required information is submitted in the plan

94.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable |:| Comments Below
Evaluate recommendations made to the District Manager proposing

95. approval/disapproval of plan

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable l:l Comments Below

9% Determine if comments from miner’s representatives are addressed

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable l:’ Comments Below
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Determine if all unusual proposals and requests are properly evaluated during the
97. review process

Adequate I:] Inadequate I:I Not Applicable Comments Below x

No unusual proposals or requests were found during this audit.

Determine if proposed plans are evaluated for provisions contrary to standards or
98. regulations

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if the uniform mine file is reviewed for information related to plan
9. adequacy

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable L__:| Comments Below

Determine if all plan approval groups communicate to prevent conflicting
100. elements of plans

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

All plan approval groups review plans for potential conflicts and document reviews on the
tracking sheet.

Determine if technical specialists conduct on-site, in-mine reviews as necessary,
101. prior to plan approval

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if input is solicited from field office inspectors/supervisors, and
102. recommendations are addressed prior to approval

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Input is solicited and documented via email and/or on the tracking sheet.
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Determine if MSHA personnel from the plan approval group contacted and
103. obtained additional information from the operator when necessary

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if results of on-site evaluations are discussed with mine operator and
104. miner’s representative

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable [:] Comments Below

Determine if the plan review process includes documentation of the entire review
105. process

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable [:] Comments Below

Via the tracking sheet and surname copy of the approval memo.

Determine if engineering reports or analyses by third parties or other agencies
106. were relayed to MSHA Technical Support

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

This applies most often to impoundment plans. However, during the audit, Technical
Support was contacted for assistance regarding a bleeder system proposal from an
underground mine.

Determine if the overall violation history, plan compliance history, accident and
107. injury reports were considered during plan review

Adequate Inadequate I:] Not Applicable I:] Comments Below

Determine if projected mining relative to overlying, underlying, and adjacent
108. workings was checked

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
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Determine if projected mining in relation to overlying bodies of water was
109. checked

Adequate D Inadequate D Not Applicable Comments Below x

There are no mines in this district currently mining under a body of water.

Determine if the overall design of the mine plan was assessed to avoid future
110. problems

Adequate Inadequate I:I Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if plans contain required safety precautions for operating remote
111 controlled equipment

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if the plan describes methods for protecting persons from falling
112. material at highwalls and drift openings

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Determine if all affected plans were compared (such as ventilation, training, roof
113. control, etc.) to eliminate conflicts prior to approval of a plan

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Interviews with the Technical Division personnel indicate that plan approval groups
communicate on a regular basis to prevent conflicts in plans. The tracking sheet documents

each department’s review.

Determine if spreadsheets and/ or databases provided for tracking of mine visits
by supervisors and managers is kept up to date

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
Attachment A - Checklist 28
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Spreadsheets are provided and appear to be up to date regarding mine visits.

Evaluate the effectiveness of management’s support of, and communication with,

T inspectors and specialists
Adequate Inadequate l:l Not Applicable I:] Comments Below
116 Review documentation of staff meetings/safety meetings to determine their

effectiveness and relevance to the Agency’s mission and current issues

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

Staff meetings, training sessions, and electrical re-certification sessions were ongoing at the
time of this audit.

Are MSHA Forms 7000-1 accurately reviewed for proper information and

L. potential violations, unsafe practices, or conditions?
Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below
118 Determine if inspectors have sufficient equipment and supplies to conduct
) thorough inspections.
Adequate D Inadequate Not Applicable D Comments Below

All field offices have a “50/50 gauge” (water pressure/flow meter) per work group except
the Ruff Creek field office. This causes scheduling conflicts when multiple inspectors need a
gauge during the same day or shift.

Recommendation: Each work group should have a 50/50 gauge to alleviate scheduling conflicts.

Determine if adequate close-out conferences are being conducted at the end of

9. each inspection.
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Adequate X Inadequate Not Applicable Comments Below
q q Pp

Determine if EO1 inspections at surface mines includes an observation/evaluation
of blast hole drilling, loading, and blasting operations.

Adequate D Inadequate D Not Applicable Comments Below

120.

This audit involved mine visits to three underground mines.

Determine if manpower at the field office is sufficient to ensure adequate,
complete inspections, investigations, and other activities.

Adequate Inadequate D Not Applicable D Comments Below

121.
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability DI (

District [ COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID ] Date
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Secvor I-Vioistion Dsta
1. Dat MoDa Vi 12 Teme (2 3. Chaton/ _
._.___ JL__m Order Number
o [ 1
(Contractor)

8. Condition or Practice -2 Wiitten Notice (1039)
The H Drive belt conveyor take-up unit was not adequately guarded to prevent a
person from reaching in or falling into the exposed movinc rollers and the
take-up deolly.

This 1s the first issuance of 75.1722(a) in the last 2 years.

Sea Continuation Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a)

9. Vioation | A. Health B Secton C. ParvSection of
Safety v of At Taie 30 CFR 75.1722(a)
Other
Sector. ii-Inspector's Evaluaton
10 Gravity'
A_injury of lliness (has) ()  No Liketihood Unlksly Reasonably Liksly v Highty Likety Occurred
i liness couid
8 sonebly be expected to be: N0 Lost Workdays Lost Vorkdays Or Restncted Duty Permanently Disabling Fatal v
C Sgnificantand Subsiartisl ves o, g ln, Number of Persons Affected: 0]
11. Negligenca (check one) A. None 8. Low C. Moderate D Hgh v €. Reciiess Disregard
12. Type of Acton  |04(a) [ 13 Type of Issuance (check one)  Crtation v Order Safeguard  Watten Notice
14. Intial Action £ Ciation/ F Dated Mo Ds Yr
A. Ctaton B. Order C. Safeguand D Wnittsn Notce Qroer Numbes

15. Ama or Equipment

16. Terminaon Due | Dmﬂ" armeerr coc [

Secton iti-Termunaton Action
17. Action to Terminate  The take-up is adequately guarded.

18 Terminsted A Date “Yv B, Time (24 Hr. Clock -
Section V-Automated SystamCata
19 Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21 Primary or Miit

(actvity EQ| -
22 Signature 23. AR Number i—
MSHA Form 700 i of the Smai B Reg: Y Famness Act of 1996. the Small Busiress Adminisration has
estabished 8 National Smal 8 nd Agncul, gu [ and 10 Regons! Famess Boerds 1 recave from smail ahout federal agency
enforcement actions  The Ombuds: lly and rates sach sgaKY's % snall 1 you wish to commant on the
anforcement acbons of MSHA. you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1888-734-3247) or write the Or 8t Smadl jon. Offica of the Nabona! Ombudsman, 409 310

Street SW MC 2120, Wastungnn, DC 20418  P1e2ss note. however that yous ngit to fie 8 commaent with (he Ombudsman w i 2adion I sy Other rights you may have, including
the nght 10 Conest Citatons and proPOSes penaihes and OXTN a heanng before the Faderal Mine Satety and Health Review Commasion

Attachment B - Citations Issued During Audit
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District COALD-2 | Field Office | Kittanning, PA | MineID [- :I Date

Mine Citation/Order . U.S. Deoartment of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Secoon - Viciaton Data

1. Dae 2 Time (24 Hr Clock) 3. Citation/
_—_ N . oo
7. Mine ID -
(Contractor)

. Longioon of Prachce 8a. WﬁT!lﬁNdi“(‘lO%l
The audible alarm for the H Belt drive, water sprinkler fire suppression is
not of sufficient volume that a miner could hear over the surrounding
machinery noise. The last recorded examination uf this [lre suppression system
was 4/6/2010.

This is the first issuance of 75.11C1-10 in the last 2 yeers.

Sea Conbnuabon Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a)

9. Vioation | A Health 8. Section C. ParySection of
Satety v of Act Title 30 CFR 75.1101-10
Other

Sechon il inspactor's Evahiation
10. Gravity’

A. Injury or liiness (has) (8): No Likelihood Unlikely « Reasonably Likely Highly Likely Occurred

8 :"J:;yu;' ;lir:u eould ":; No Lost Workdays Lost Workdays Or Resincted Duty v Permanently Dsabling Fatal

C. Significant and Substantial’ Yes No v D. Number of Persons Affected. 001
11. Negligance (check ons) A. None B.Low v C. Moderate D. High E. Reckless Drregard
12 Type ot Action | (4(a) ] 13. Type of Issuance (chack one)  Ctation v Order Sateguard Writtan Notice
14, Initial Action E. Citationv F Dated Mo Dp Yr

A. Citation 8 Order C. Safegusrd D. Wnrtten Notice Order Number

15, Area or Equipment

e gl [

ST
17.Acionto Terminate The alarm is repaired and functions as desigred.

I o1 N S

Secton V--Automated System Oate
19 Type of tnspection 20. Event Number - 21 Pricnary or Ml

(activity code) EOI
22 Snnnw;* IZJARNumr _
MSHA Form 700 wons of the Smed 6 R Act of 1996, the Smail Busiress Adminstraton has
establithed 3 Nuusm: s - A5 ¥ wioWmeum from smal atout federal agency
ardorcement acnons  The Ombudsman and raies each agency's 0 smaki | #f you wish to comment on the
enfotcament acbons of MSHA, mmw1mn£a-mau-au1u-azm of wiva the Om a1 Smaf B ion, Office of the National Ombucsman, 409 3rd
Street, SW MC 2120, wmm DC 20418 Presse note, however, that your nght to fils a comment with the Ombudsman 18 1n additon (o any other nghts you may have, InGudng
the ngih to comest and obtain 8 heaning before the Federal Mine Safely and Heelth Review Commission.

Attachment B - Citations Issued During Audit



United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID :] Date
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Section 1-Vioiation Data

1 Date Yr 2 Time (24 Hr. Clock) 3 Caation/

tor

6. Mine 7. Mine ID (-
(Contractor)

. Condition or Practice 8a_Written Notice (103g)
The lifeline located in the No.4 entry Intake travel way (primary escapway)
was not installed in such a manner for miners to use effectively to escape at
two locaticns. The life line is installed over the phone lines at both
locations, D Mains and E-Mains Intake travel way phones. This condition would
not let the lifeline fall to a usable level for miners to escape.

This is the first issuance of this gtandard in the last Z years.

See Continuabon Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a)

9 Violaion | A. Health B Section C Part/Section of
Safety v ot Act Tl 30 CFR 75.380(dX 7 Kiv)
Othar
Secton I—inspector's Evalustion
10. Gravity:
A Injury or liness (has) (is) No Likelihcod Unlikely Reasonably Likely v Highly Likely Occumred
H il 3
® ;r::;yb;r:.ne;f mul‘d J;:. No Lost Workdays Lost Workdays Or Restncted Duty Parmanently Disabhing Fatal v
C Sgndicant and Substantial. Yes v No ]D Number of Persans Affected. 009
11. Neghgencs (check one) A None B Low C. Moderate D.Hgh v E. Reckiess Disregard
12 Type of Action | (04(a) I 13. Type of Issuance (check one)  Chation v Order Sateguard Written Notice
14 Intial Action €. Citation/ F.Dated Mo Da Yr
A Ciation 8. Orver C Safeguard O Written Notics Order Numbet

15 Ares or Equipment

16 Terminabon Ove |, .o “’ B Time (24 Hr Clack) -

Secton §il-Terminaton Acton
17 Actionto Terminate  The phone lines were re-routed and the lifelines are clear.

Secton V-Automataa System Dea

19. Type of Inspaction 20. Event Number 21 Primary or Mill
(acthvity E0)
22. Sugnatur |23‘AR Number -
MSHA Form 70¢ ions of the Small g Y Famess Aci of 1896, the Small Business Admimstration has
f aN sman -y g 7 wenniiSman and 10 Regional Fasmess 808:ds 10 reconve from smal about federa! agency
enforcement actions  The Omb y ivities and ratas each agency’s resp to smatl H you wish to comment on the
enforcement achons of MSHA, you msy call 1-888-REG-FAR (1-868-734-3247). ot write the O at Smail B A . Offica of the Natona Ombudsman. 409 3ra
Street, SW MC 2120, Washington, OC 20416 Please note, however. that your night to file 8 comment with the Ombudsman 18 ¢ addbon (0 any other ngits you May Nave. iIncludng
the nght to contest sng ies and obian a heanng before the Faderal Ming Safety and Heaith Revinw Commission.
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District | COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID ] Date _ ]
Mine Citation/Order U.8. Department of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Secton &-Violation Data
1 Data Yr 2. Time (24 Hr Clock) 3. Cutation/

e uroer

i

PIGI

(Contractor)

"

i. !oncmon or Practice

8a. Written Notice (1 gi)___

The Strata fresh air bay, Refuge alternative utilized for the H2 Butt Rooms
(MMUj-004) working section is not equipped with a method for monitoring gas

cuncentrations.
This 1s the first issuance of 75.1506

{(a) (3) in the last 2 years.

See Continuaton Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a)

9 Violation | A Health 8 Section C Part/Secton of
Safety v ot Act Trtie 30 CFR 75.1506(a)3)
Other
Section I-inspector's Evaluation
10 Gravity:
A injury or liiness (has) (s)  No Likelihood Unlikely Regsonably Likely Highty Likety Occutred
. l""m{ o &":g‘: t: ; NO Lost Workdays Lost Workdays Or Restncted Duty Permanently Disabling Fatal v
C. Sgnificant and Substantiat e [o Number of Persons Affected (309
11 Neghgence (check one) A None 8. Low C. Moderate D High v E. Reckless Disregard
12 Type of Achon | 04(a) Lu. Type of ssuance (chack one)  Cdation v Order Safequard  Written Notice
14 intal Action E Citatiory F Dated Mo D8 Yr
A Ciaton 8 Oroer C Safeguard D. Weitten Notice Order Number+

15 Area or Equipment

18, Termination: Dle B Time (24 Hr Clock)

Sacton Hl- Termmation Action

17 Actonto Teminate A method fcr monitoring gas concentrations i1s provided at the

refuge alternative.

Yr
18 Tarminated N Dato“

B. Time (24 Hr Clock

Secton V-Automatad System Data
19. Type of Inspection [20. Evem Number -

21 Primary or Mitt

{activty E0)
-

T

MSHA Form 70C . 3 of the Small Reg Y Faimess Ad of 1996, the Small Business Adminsirabon has
a Small B and Ag g y O and 10 Famess Boards o recave fom smai about federas agency

enforcement actions. The Omb iy vities 9nd rates sach agency’s to smatl H you wish 1o commaent on the

enforoemen actons of MSHA, you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247), or wirte the Ombuds. a1 Smab B Office of the Nabona. Ombudsman. 409 3rt

Stroet. SW MC 2120, Washingion OC 20416, Please nots, however, that your nght to file a comment with the Ombudaman i3 m add4on 10 any other nghts you may have. including

the nght 1o contest jons and
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District COAL D-2 | Field Office | Kittanning, PA Mine ID {;- :] Date

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration é))

Secton I--Violalion Data
1. Date 4 2 Time {24 Hr CI 3 Ciatiorv -
Order Number!
1]
7. Mine 10
- (Con"mo')
8 Condition or Practice 8a. Writtan Notice (103g) '

& _Min
Combustible nmaterial, lccse coal ard coal dust, was allowed to accumulate on
the 1 Butt Rcoms, MMU 0Cl1-3 sectior. The affected area was crosscut #3 to #4
(SS#13107). The combustible material was apprcx. 0 to 12 inches in depth by 3
to 18 inches in width by approximately 20 feet in length. The coal was dry
throughout the entire accumulation.

xs.

This will be the tenth issuance of 75.400 in the last twc vyea

See Continuation Forrn (MSHA Form 7000-1a)

9 Volation | A Heatth B. Section C ParvSection of
Safety v, of Act Title 30 CFR 75.400
Other|
Secidn li-Inspectar’s Evaluaton
10 Gravity
A Injury or lliness (has) (1s)  No Likelthood Unlikely Reasonably Lkely v Highty Likely Occurred
B Injury or iliness couid rea- -
sonasly be expectodto ber  NoLOS Worazys Lost Workdays Or Restncted Duty ~ ,  Permanently Disabiing Fatal v
C Sg "t and S Yos v No TO. Number of Persons Affected: 007
11. Nagligence (check one) A None ! B.Llow - C. Moderate v 0 High E. Reckless Disregard
12. Type of Action 10(a) r 13. Type of issuance (chack one)  Citavon v Orde: . Saleguerd Written Notice
14. Initial Action E. Citatiov F Dated Mo Da Yr
A.Citavon , B Ordar C Safeguard :  D. Written Notice . Ordar Number

15 Area or Equipment

S ————

Yi
16 Termingtion Oue |, D.u“ " |8 Time (24 Hr. Clock) -

Section ii-Ternination Acbon
17 Actonto Terminate The accumulation of coal and coal fines were cleaned up and the

area was rock custed.

- . Y
18. Terminated | , Da# " |8 Time (24 Hr Clock -

Section V-Automated Sys!
18. Type of inspection 20. Event Number 21 Primary of Milt

(actwil EOI / \
22 Signat lz:. AR Number _
_
MSHA MFotm of the Smati By g y Cnfo Fmrness Act of 1990, the Small Dusness Admunistrstion has
eslatished 3 Srnait g Ay v 7 Jmbuds: #nd 10 Regonal Faimess Beards 1o receve comments from small businesses ebout federal agency

to smaii ¥ you wish to commen: on the

entorcement achons. The Omtuasman y and rates each agency's resp
enforcement acuons of MSHA, rou may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734.3247), of werte the Omdudsman at Smak Business A Oftice of De O d , 409 Xa
Streat SW MC 2120 Washington, DC 20416 Piease roie, however, that your ngnt 1o file 3 comment with !fie OMBudsMan rs 1 a0alion 10 3ny omer ngnis you May Nave. nchuding
ihe nght 1o contest and and oblam @ heanng defora the Federal Mine Safety and Heatth Review Commisson
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID } Date
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor (é))

Mine Safety and Heaith Administration

Sectcn --Violaton Data
1 Date Yr 2 Time (2 3 Cuaton/ (-
Ordar Number
EE

0 LULILLIN UT Fleuine

The sprinkler system, which provides fire protecticn for the 1-Butt drave and
belt, was not set up and maintained preoperly in accordsance with the National
Fire Protection Association. Several of the sprinkler neads were arrange in
such a manner that if activated the water sprav pattern would miss their
intended target. Also, under sized water hose that supplies water to the
sprinkler designated to protect the belt starter box did not have the capacity
to supply the proper GPM flow required by the rational fire code.

/ Mine D
l _ {Contractor)

Ba Writtea Notice {103g)

This will be the first issuance of 75.1101-7 in the iast tLwo years.

See Continuation Form (MSHA Form 7000-13)

9 Violauon | A Mealth 8 Section C ParSection of
Satety v of Act Titte 30 CFR 75.1101-7
Other _

Secton i-nspeciors Evaiuahon
10. G-avtty:

A Injury or lliness (has) \is) No Likelihood Uniikely Reasonably Likely Highly Likely Occured

8 Inju tiness id rea-

Sonasly be expoected to ba N0 Last Wokdays Lost Workdays Or Restricted Outy Permanently Disabling Fatal v

L. Signiticant and Substantial Yok N6 i TD Number of Persons Aflected. ()2
11 Negligence (check one) A None |__ 8. Low , _ C. Moderate vy D High . _ E Reckless Disregard
12 Type of Action ] 04(a) [ 13 Type of tssuance (checkone) Craton v  Order Safeguara Wiitten Notice
14. Intial Action €. Citation/ F Dated Mo Da Yr

A. Cdation B8 Ocdar C Safeguard D Written Notice | | Order Number
15 Area or Equipment
16 T i
T Reminmion Doe: 1.y o‘al-' ' |8 Time (24 Hr Ciock) -
Sector {i-Terminabon Acton
17, Action to Terminate
1 MoDa Vi
8 Termnated| » pate * ' 8. Time (24 Hr. Ciock

Sechon (V--Automated System Caa
19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21 Primary or Mill

(activty EOI "
22. Signatun 123.AR Number _
B 3
MSIA Torm 70 of the Smalt B i< Fermess Act of 1396, the Emait Busmeas Adminiairaton has
estabished a N an and 10 Regional Fawness Boaras 0 receive ‘rom smati about ‘eaeral agency
enforcement actions The O | huat ard rates each spency's 10 amatl I you wish 10 comment on the

enfotcement pctions of MSHA you may call 1-ah~REG-FMR (1-888-734-2247), or wme the Ombudsman at g;nal Business Adminisiraion, Office of the Nations Ombudsman, 409 319
Street, SW MC 2120, Washingbn, DC 20416  Piesse ncte, however. thai your nght to file 2 comment with ife Ombudaman 15 11 30CHIoN 1D any Liher NGNIS yYou M3y have, «dudng
he nght 1o contes! ana and ontain 8 heanng bafore the ~ederal Ming Salety ang Health Reviaw Commission
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District | COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID ] Date
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration (é))
Secton t--Violaton Dala
1 Date 2 Time (24 Fr Clock) 3 Cilation?
“ i h Ollde‘r Number -
$ Operatos

4 Served To (6)

6 Ming T Mine D —
(Contractor)

8a Writien Notce (103g)

.8, Conddion or Practica
\.Wiequate guariding was not provided 1o prevent a person from coming in contact
wizh both sides of the tandem drive pul.eys or the l- Butt Belt drive. When
measured, the exposed area measured approximately 10 inckes by 20 inches on
the clearance side of the belt drive and appreximately U ro 2U inch exposed
area on rhe tight side of the belt drive.

This will be the second 1issuance of 75.1722(b}) in the last two years.

Sse Contnuabion Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a)

9 Violation | A Heamh B Section C ParvSection of
Satety/ of Act Title 30 CFR 15.1722(b)
Othar
Section It s E
10 Grawty:
A Injury or lliness (has) (is): No Likelihood Unlikely Reasonably Likely « Highly iikely Occurred
8 or iine id rea-
sl(::;{ly l;e a::e::d to be. No Lost Workdays Lost Workdays Or Restncted Duty Permanentty Disabling v Fatal
C Sgnificant ana Subs:antal Yes v No L. Numper of Harsons Attected 001
11 Negligence {check one) A. None B. Low C Moderate v D High £ Reckless Disregard
12. Type of Action 104(a) J 13 Type of issuance (check one)  Cilation v Order Safeguard wntten Notice
14, Imhal Action E Ciation/ F Dated Mo Da Yr
A Citating R Order C Sateguard 00 Whntten Notice Order Numbhar
15, Area or Equipment
1 i Mo Da Yr
6 Temination Oue |, ng 8 Time (24 Hr. Clock) ()

Sectian I-- Tenmnabion Acdon e
17 Azlion to Terminale Adec}Wa(?e guarding was installed and securely mounted to the 1-

Butt belt drive.

. Temi MoDs Yr
18 Terninated | , 110 B. Time (24 Hr Clock ENEN
Section IV-Aulomated System Jata
19 Tvpe of inspection 20 Evenl Number 21 Prnmary or Milt
BT TEE)
22. Sgnatuém Jis. AR Number —_—
MSHA Form 7t (6) 13 of \ne Smali O ! Fairnesa Act of 1296, the Small Buaness Administoton has
enabushad B M i i 5 = . sman and 10 Regional Faimess Boalus 1o recetve commanis from small businesses about federal agency
actons The Ombug: X 1 o and rates each agency's respor to small if you wish 10 comment on the
. Office of the Natoral Ombudsman, 409 3rd

enaforcement actrons of MSHA, You may catl waa REG-FAIR (1-868-734-3247), of wrte the Ombud: 3t Smat B
Street. SW MC 2120, Wastingion DC 20418 Please rote, however that your nght to file a commant wih the Ombudsman 16 1n 3aation 19 37y other nghts you M3y nhave including
1he nght to contest ang P ang cblan a neanng detore the Federal Mine Safaty and Health Review Commisson

Attachment B - Citations Issued During Audit
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District COAL D-2 Field Office

Kittanning, PA

Mine ID

Mine Cilation/Qrder

:l Date

U.S. Department of Labor @)

Mine Safety and Health Admnistration

Secion! Violauon Data

3. Cuations

Order Number _

1 Date Mo Da Yr 2 Time {24 Hr Clock)
4 Served To - 5 Oimlor
6 Mine

l 7 Mine 1D

dition or Practice (6)

{Contractor)

8a. Wnitten Natice (103g)

The record of the results of the pre-shift exam
flight on 4/€6/10 and 4/7/10 had the wrong dates
entered showed the cxam was performed on 5/6/10
entries made in the pre-shift exam book was not

This will be the third issuance of 75.360(f) in

performec on the 1-hutt belt
entered. The dates that were
and 5/7/10. Also, two of the
signed by the examirer.

the last rwo years.

See Continuation Form (MSHA Forrm 7000-3a)

9 Violaton | A Heaith B Section C ParvSechon of
Safety v of Act Thie 30 CFR 75.360()
Other; '

Section i~ Inspector's Evaluation
10 Grawity

A injury of liiness (has) (18).  No Likelthood v, Unhketly Reasonably Likely Highty Likely Occurred

8 Injury or liness could rea-

comavly be eepoctodth b, N0 LoSt Workdays v Lost Workdays Or Resircted Duty Permanantly Disabling Fatal

C. Synificant and Substantial Yes No v }D Nurrber of Persons Affecled 000
11 Negligsnce (check one) A None ! | B Low C Moderate D High € Reckless Disregasd
12. "ype of Action  104(a) l 13 Type of Issuance (chack one)  Ciation v Order Safeguard Written Notice
14, Inttial Action € Caationv F Dated Mo Da Yr

A.Citation | B Order C Sateguard _  D. Wntten Notice Order Number
15. Area or Equpment

i Yi
18 TeminationOue: |, ¢\ “ " |B Tima (24 Hr Clork) -
Section fii-Termmation Acton (R)
17. Action to Terminate 7
Yi

18 Terminated |, o, MOD3 VP 1y [ime 24 He Clock
Section IV-Automated Sysiem Date
19 Type of inspaction 20 Event Number 21 Prurary or Ml

o o E01 | A (R
22 Signatur i 23 AR Number _

15 of the Smah Business Reguiatory Enforcement Fasmess At of 1996, tne Small Busness Admimnistration has

MSHA Form 71
esiabrshed a ! sman and 10 Regronal Faimess Boards 1o recaive comments hom small businesses acoul federal agency

o acvons. The O ity £na (3185 6aCh 3gENCY's rESP to small H you wish to comment on the
enforcement actions of MSHA you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734.3247) of wnte the O at Smad 8 Offtice of he Nabonal Ombudsman, 408 38

Stroet, SW MC 2120, Washngion, DC 20418  Please rote, however hal your nght to file 2 comment with the Omoudsman 1S n 3damon ta any Ohet ngnis you may have ncluding

the nght 1o contest and

Attachment B - Citations Issued During Audit
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United States Department of Labor

Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | Mine ID ] Date
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Secvon I--Violaton Data
t Date Mo Da Y1 2. Time (2 3 Cutation/ i—
____m Order Number
4 Served To 5. Operator
7 Mine 1D
(Conlractor)
0. LONOIGN Of FIacuce 8a Wniten Notice {103g)
The roof area where persons work or travel is not supported or otherwise
roof, face or

controlled to protect persons from hazards related to falls of
the affected area began at the #7 Belt
(3S5#13004) .

ribs in the #7 Belt,
extended outby approximately five cr
to five inches thick by several feet
logations within the five crosscut a

0SS cuts

tailpiece and
Loose hanging rock 0

in diameter was detected at several

rea.

This standard was cited 9 times in two years at this mine.

See Conhinuation Form (MSHA Fonm 7000-3a)

9 Volation | A Health B Section C Part/Section of
Safety v of Act Title 30 CFR 75.202(a)
Other
Sectwa il--Inspector's Evaluation
10 Grawty:
A injury or lliness (has) is) No Likelhood | Unlikely Reasonably Lixely v Highly Likely Occurred

B. Injury or iliness couic rea-

sonably be expectad lo be. N0 LOS! Workdays - .

Lost Workdays Or Restncted Duty

Permanently Disabling Fatal 'w

C Significant and Substantial. Yes i No

]o

Number of Persons Affacted: 001

11 Negisgence (check one) A None B Low

C Moderate D High

E Reckless Distegard

12 Type of Action 104(3)

13. Type of Issuance (check one)

Caation v  Order

Safeguard ~ Written Nouce *

14 inftial Action

A. Citation B Orde* C Safeguard D Wntten Notice

E Citahon/
Ordet Number

F Dated Mo Da Vr

15 Araa or Equipment

16 Temmination Due

B Time (24 Hr Clack) '

Secton iil--Termmabon Achon

17 Action 1o Terminate

18 T MoDa Y
8 Tomunated| » pate  M° " 1B Tme (24 Hr Clock

Secton IV—-Aulomaled Sysiem Data

19 Type of Inspaction [20 Event Number -
FO1 2

21 Pnmary or Mill

(activity conal
22 Sagnalur-

23 AR Number

Famess At ol 1996 the Smai Business Adnunistrabion has
from smal! b 3bout faderal agancy

————
HASHA Form 7¢ Small 8 Reg y Enk
estabished a N ¢ 10 Regiona) Faimess Bosrds to recaive

0 smalt

if you wish o comment on the

00 rates €ach agONCY's 18D

enforcement actions  The Omix

Offica of the National Ombudsman €09 3rd

enforcement actions of MSHA. you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-886-734-3247), of wnte the Om|

dsman a1 Smail 8, A

Streel. SW MC 2120. Washinglon, OC 20418 Pleass note, however, tnat your ngnt to file a comment with the Ombudsman 1 1 20don 10 any other PGS you may have Including

the nght ta conest and progx
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability -
[ ] Date [-

District COAL D-2 | Field Office | Kittanning, PA | MineID

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Admimistration ((?)

Section I--Vioiaton Data

1 Date 2 Time (24 ] 3 Caations -
Qrder Number —
i 7 Mine iD
“ — (Contractor)

8 _Conaiton or kractice 8a Wrttten Notice (103g)
A record of the results of the pre-shift exams conducted on the mines Refuge
Alternatives had not been recorded in the pre-shiit exam book. Confirmation
that the exams were conducted was verified ny the UTI bcards iocated at the
Refuge Alternatives.

This will be the first lssuancze of 75.360(f) in the last twc years.

See Conunuabon Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a)

9 Violaton | A Health 8 Section C. Part/Section of
Satety v of Act Inig 30 CHR 75.360(1)
Other
Section H-lnspeciors Evakiation
10 Grawvity
A Imury or {liness (has) (r5)  No Likelthood Unlikely « Reasonably Likety Highty Likely Occurred
8.1 or illiness could rea-
ey ty ! e to be: No Lost Workdays v/ Lost Workdays Qr Restncted Duty Permanertly Disabling Fatat
C Sqgnificant and Substantial. Yes No v ]«D Number cf Persons Affected 000
11. Negligence (check one) A None B Low C Moderate v D Hgh E Reckxless Drsregard
12. Type of Acton | 04(a) T 13. Type of Issuance (check one)  Citation v Order Safeguard Written Notice
14 Initia) Action E Citation/ F Dated Mo Da Yr
A. Cnation B. Orger C Sateguara D Wnhien Nouce Oroer Number

15. Area or Equipment

16 Termination Due

v
A Oate " |8 Time (24 Hr Clock) (D
Section lll-Termnabon Action (6)

17.Actionto Termnate The mine management retrained the mine examiners oOn proper
record keeping techniques.

Termi Mo Oa Y
18 Temindted .y pate 8 Tmeath cocx [N
Secbon V-Automated System Data (0)
19 Type of Inspecion 20 Event Number - 21 Pamary or Mill

{activity code) 201
22, Sgnalure - 23 AR Number -}
MSHA Form 70003, Apr Of (. n ' with the of the Smal B 9 yE F Actof 988 :mmnn@ammmnwm
estabhshed a Nabona. Small Business ang Agncutture R Ombud: and 10 Reg! Famess 80ards Io recewe from smait about federds agency
enforcement achons The O y f and rates each agency’s 0 small It you wish 0 comment on ihe
enfortement actions of MSHA you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247), or wnte the Ombuds, a1 Smakt B A Office of the National Ombudsman. 409 3¢

Stieet, SW MC 2120 Washmgton DC 20418 Please nofe. however That your nght 10 file 2 COmment with the OMBudSMEn is in addibon 1 any other ANts you May have. nchuding
the nght 10 contest citatians and proposed penalties and obtan 8 heaing before the Federal bine Safety and Health Review Commussion
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability _

District | COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | Mine ID ] Date

Mine Citation/Order D R AFT @)

Secuon I-Violation Data

Lw 2 Time (24 Hr Clock) E Citation/ (-
____(_ Order Number

3 Mine 7 Mine ID _
M (Contracter)
ondgion or Practice 83. Written Notice (1032)

The sprinklasr system, which provides fire protection for the C-Mains drive and
pelt, was net set up and maintained properly. Five sprinkler heads were
covered witn mud/sludge, the heat 3ensing e¢lements were not viaible, entombed

in a thick layer of debris. Several of the sprinkler heads were not aimed

properiy or were missing the dispersicn apparatus {daisyi, this condition ;
~would limit the water spray pattern ability to hit the intended targets. :

This will be the first issuance of 75.1101-6 in the last two years.

See Continuanion Form (MSHA Form 7000-33)

9 Violaton | A Hearn B. Section C ParvSection of
Salety v of Act Tike 30 CFR 75.1101-6
Other
Section li-Inspector’s Evaluation
10 Grawity
A injury or lliness (has) 1s).  No Likelihood Untikely Reasonably Likely Highly Likely Occurred
B Injury or iliness could rea-
so]n;\l')ly be !erﬂ:d to be No Lost Workdays Lost Workdays Or Restncted Duty Permanently Disabiing Fatal v
C. Significant and Substantial Yes No v O N of P Affected 002
“1. Negligence (check one) A None 8 Low C. Moderate v D High E. Rechless Disregard
‘2 Typeof Acton | 04(a) T 13 Type of Issuance (checkone) Cnation v Order Safeguard Written Notice
14 Inhal Action € Citatio F Dated Mo Da Yr
A Citstion B Order C Safeguad O Wittien Notice Order Numben

‘S Area or Equipment

- - Yr
§ Terination Due |, Dmﬂ 8 Tme 24t coco  [HENE

Secton il- Termnahon Adion
‘7 Actionto Teminate  The water sprinkler heads were cleaned, replaced and

ceposisitiocned as needed.

=7 MoDa Y !
& Terminatea " °) B Time (24 Hr Clock i)

Sechon IV--Automated Swug%:r
9 Type of Inspection |

. 20 Event Number - 21 Pnmary or Mi
{actvity code) 0!
22 Swgnature ﬁ 23 AR Number “

MSI11A Form T000-3, Agr 00 (revised} in accoramce with the provizans of the Small B Regt y Ei Fainess Act of 1096, inc Small Busncess Administration hag
a Smatl B and A R y O and 10 Regiona! Fairness 80aros 1o recenve comments from small dusinesses about fegeral agency
enforcement actions  The O ily 8nd raies each agency's 1o small If you wish 0 commenti on the
enforcement actions of MSHA. you may call 1-868-REG-FAIR {1-888-734.3247) o write the O at Smai B A Office of the Natona! Ombudsman, 40¢ 3¢
Street, SW MC 2120, Washington. DC 20418 Please note, howaver, ihal your ngnt to file a comment wah the Ombudsman 1S 1n a0dion to any other nghts ou May have including

me nght 1o contest Gitatians and proposed penatiies ang odtain 3 heanng beloce the Federal Mine Salely 3nd Health Review Commssion
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability -
District | COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning, PA | MineID [ ] Date

Mine Citation/Order DR AFT @

Section | -Violation Data

1 Date | ii i Yr 2 Time (24 Hr_Clock ls Citation? '
ﬂ Order Number
“To - (6) 5. ﬁra(or
7. Mine 1D
iRl e —

d Londition of Practica B8a Written Notice (103g)
The exposed main drive belts and pulleys {tandem) on the C-Main belt drive was
not quarded to prevent miners from coming in contact wita the pinch points. A
belt cross over/under access point was installed in close proximity to the
tandem drive pulleys. This condition places miners near the tandem pulleys. A
miner travaled through this area while the inspection was in progress The
exposed area measured approx.22 inches X 36 inches.

This will be the second issuance of 75.1722(a) ir the last two years.

See Continuation Form (NSHA Form 7000-3a)

9 Violation | A Heahn 8. Section C Part/Section of
Salety v of Act Title 30 CFR 75 1722(a)
Other
Sectian #--Inspector's Evatuation
10. Gravity
A Injury or liiness (has) (i;s)  No Likelthood Unbikely Reasonably Likely v Highly Likely - Occurred
B.t U
s‘::g:s‘ b:‘:m ,:,' ;: No Lost Workdays Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duty Permanently Disabling Fatal v
C. Signficant and Sutstantial o & B Jo Number of Persans Affeced
11 Negirgence (check one) A None B Low C Moderate v D High E Reckiess Disiegard
12. Type of Action | (4(a) 13 Type of Issuance (check one)  Citation v Order Safeguard Written Notice
14 Inthiat Action E Citatiorv F Dated Mo Da Yr
A. Ctation 8. Orcer C Safeguamd D. Written Notice Ordar Numbcer

15. Area or Equipment

16 Termination Due A Oa'iﬁ" 8 Time (24 Hr Clock) !

Sechon - Terrminabon Achon
17 Action to Temunate

Mg0a ¥
18, Teminated | | Daleﬂ " |8 Time 24 Hr Clock -

Seaon IV--Automated System Data

19 Type of Inspection _ 20 Event Number i 29 Prmary or Mill
{activity code) EO!
22 Signature 23 AR Number :

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 )] n with the of twe Sinah B Rey y F Act ul 1998, i Sinul Busiurss Adrnstelio fus

anN i Smak B and Agnculture Jegutatory O and 10 Reg! Fairness 8oards 10 receive from smalt abowt tederal agency
enforcement actons  The Onby y eval and rates €3ch agency's resp 10 small if you wash Lo comment on the
enforcement actions of MSHA you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247), or wrie the O 31 Smal B A . Office of the Natona! Ombdudsman, 409 3ra
Steet, SW MC 2120, Washngton, DC 20418 Plaase note, howaver. that your nght 10 fie 3 comment with the Ombudsman 5 in agdtion to any other ngnis you Mmay have, incuding
the ngnt 1o contest and prop and oblain a heanng before he Federal Mine Satety and Haalth Review Commission
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability (
(
Districc | COALD-2 | Field Office Kittanning Mine [D [ ] Date ]
Mine ID [ Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
(. 4@ | 75.503 N|u || 1 Mod

All electric face equipment, which is taken into or used inby the last open crosscut, was not maintained in
permissible condition. The #1 scoop, SN 482-1731, located in the F1 Rooms section, had two loose bolts in
the plane joint cover of the breaker box and one loose bolt in the plane joint cover of the main control panel.
When measured with a gauge, there was no gap exceeding .004 inches between the cover and the box of
either panel. Methane readings at the faces of the F1 Rooms section were 0.0%.This is the 13th violation of
75.503 at this mine in the last two years.

Considering the number of times this was cited, a higher degree of negligence should have been considered.
An occurrence related to permissibility would also be likely to affect more than 1 person.

P ™ z T= T Ra AR Teoe Tiivah I Ininrv | Affacted | Nealiaence |
Lconsmenng TNE NUITIVET Ul TS UNIS WA witvwm, w tuygier m—g- =~ - o G
J
Mine ID_| Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | injury | Affected | Negligence

RPN TN 104(a)
. Citation | 75-204eX1) | Y | RL | PD 1 Low

There were five fully grouted 42 inch resin roof bolts installed in the intersection of the #3 Lo-Lo Beit entry,
just inby the Lo-Lo belt tail, MMU 004-0, F1 Butt Rooms, that the bearing plates were not installed firmly to
the roof line. When minimal pressure was applied the bearing plates could be spun easily. The Eimco
continuous miner and the Long Airdox MBC were tramming through this area. This will be the first issuance
of 75.204(c)(1) in the last two years.

A citation for inadequate examinations should have aiso been considered.

lMine ID iCitation | Issued | Type | 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence

Lt
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability ( (

District | COALD-2 | Field Office [ Kittanning Mine ID [- J Date l‘! :I
Mine ID | Citation [Issued | Type [30CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
| Mine ID | Citation [ Issued Type | 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence

I AN ArN

1

Mine ID | Citation | issued Type | 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence

T 4amas

- |

i

.

Mine ID r Citation Llssued rType 30CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
L T cmae s
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability (
(
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office | Kittanning Mine ID ] Date ]

cme abhaiitd haiia lhaaAn l

Citation [ Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
N 104(a)
Citation 75.333(c)(1) | N UL FTL 9 Mod

e distance between personnel doors in permanent stoppings, used to separate the belt conveyor
haulageway from the return air course, was more than 300 feet in a seam height below 48 inches. The
required door between #3 and #2 heading, in 1 North East Main, located one crosscut inby ss 11092, in #3
heading, was gobbed and impassable. This is the 2nd violation of 75.333(c)(1) at this mine in the past two

years.
A citation for inadequate examinations should have also been considered.

Mine ID [ Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence

104(a)
SICHNOION Ciaton [ 75517 [ N [ UL [FTL| 1 | Mod

Power wires and cables were not insulated adequately and fully protected. The outer conduit of the size
6, 480 volt, cable, supplying electrical power to the #20, 30 HP, pump had separated from the switch box
connector, exposing the insulated inner wires. The exposed area measured approximately one half inch.
The pump is located along the tight side of the 2 West Beltline, in the #3 entry and was immediately
removed from service by the operator. This is the thirteenth violation of 75.517 at this mine in the past two
years.

Considering the number of times this was cited, a higher degree of negligence should have been
considered.

“T Citation |Issued [ Type [30CFR | S&S | Likely [ injury | Affected | Negligence
T T 1

Mine ID | Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence

104(a) | . oan \r =Y cTI 2 Mnd

L
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

( (
District [ COALD-2 | Field Office Kittanning Mine ID l:- ] Date :l

L

Mine ID | Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
104(a)
. Citation 75.333(c)(1) N UL FTL 7 Mod

The distance between personnel doors, installed in permanent stoppings constructed after November 15,
1992, permitting travel between aircourses, was more than 300 feet in a seam height below 48 inches. The
distance between personnel doors in 1st North West Mains, crosscut 38 and 45 was approximately 420
feet. These doors are to permit travel between the primary and secondary escapewaysThis is the third
violation of 75.333(¢)1 at this mine in the past two years..

A citation for inadequate examinations should have also been considered.

Mine ID | Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
' 104(a)
Citation 75.1725(@) | Y RL | FTL 2 Mod

The #4 twin boom Fletcher roof bolting machine, s/n 2006023, operating on the I-Butt rooms MMU-002
section was not being maintained in safe operating condition. A cross member plate that was welded on
the back of the ATRS support bracket assembly was broke completely off. The Assistant to the Mine
Foreman, Rick Beers immediately removed this roof bolter from service. Within the last two years this
section of the law has been cited 13 times.

Considering the number of times this was cited, a higher degree of negligence should have been
considered.

Mine ID | Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence

104(a)
- - ciad | 75.1725() | Y | RL | FTL 1 Low

The #18 Marmon Research mantrip (s/n 372B-27) located in the pit charging bay was not maintained in
a safe operating condition. The Look-a-head-system when tested did not work. The tram pedal was left
in the on position and the panic bar (emergency shut down system) was tested, when the panic bar was
reset with the tram pedal in the on position the mantrip started to move in high tram. The mine mechanic
immediately removed this mantrip from service. This is the 14th time this section of the law has been
cited within the last two years.

Considering the number of times this was cited, a higher degree of negligence should have been
considered. The number of persons affected does not reflect that this is a mantrip.

[ Mine ID | Citation | Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
' 104(a)
_ - Citation 75.1100-3 Y RL | FTL 7 Mod

All firefighting equipment was not maintained in a usable and operative condition. The firehose, located
at the 3-Left Butt beltline tailpiece, was not equipped with a nozzle to control the spray of water. This is
the second violation of 75.1100-3 at this mine in the past two years.

A citation for inadequate examinations should have also been considered.
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The water sprinkler (required for firefighting) system installed to protect the | Butt belt-conveyor drive was
not installed and maintained in accordance with Sections 75.1101-7 through 75.1101-11. Both branch
lines were installed above the top belt instead of one branch line positioned above the top belt and one
installed between the top and bottom belt, as required by 75.1101-8(b). Also, no sprinkier was installed
above the electrical control (starter box), as required by 75.1101-8(a). This mine operator has not been
cited for violations of this standard at this mine in the last two years.

A citation for inadequate examinations should have also been considered.

Mine ID | Citation | Issued Type | 30CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affected | Negligence
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The waterline installed parallel to the F Butt belt conveyor was not equipped with firehose outlets with
valves at 300-foot intervals. The distance from the firehose outlet just outby Survey Spad No.967 to the
firehose outlet near Survey Spad No.928 was approximately 500 feet. This mine operator has not been
cited for violations of this standard at this mine in the last two years.

A citation for inadequate examinations should have also been considered.

Attachment C ~Citations with Questionable Evaluations

47





